
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and the environment by providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and recycling services. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

 BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

July 6, 2023 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR:

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for June 15, 2023

B. Approve the Warrant List for July 6, 2023

C. Approve Ford request to attend the WateReuse California Conference November 5-8 in Indian
Wells, CA 

D. Approve Contract Amendment for Asset Management Consulting 

E. Approve Board Policy F-50 Reserves and Resolution 2023-2314 

F. Approve Order of Publication Ordinance 192 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through D. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through F. 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal

4:50 PM 

4:35 PM 

4:40 PM 

Estimated 
Time 

4:30 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


July 6, 2023 Page 2 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

4. PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE 193 – AN ORDINANCE  AMENDING TITLE 3, CHAPTER 2, LAS
GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY CODE (REIMBURSEMENT FOR PUBLIC SEWER MAIN
EXTENSIONS)

A. OPEN PUBLIC HEARING

District staff presents Ordinance No. 193 Amending Title 3, Chapter 2 Sanitary Code of the Las 
Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. 

B. REVIEW DISTRICT STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

Board to consider staff recommendation to adopt Ordinance 193 amending Title 3, Chapter 2 
Sanitary Code of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. 

C. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board regarding the 
proposed Ordinance.  Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. 

D. CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING 

Board to close the public hearing. 

E. BOARD DETERMINATION AND ACTION 

Board to consider comments from public, review administrative record and make determination 
regarding approval of Ordinance 193.  

5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

Other Reports

2. FORD
a. NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Fleet Management  Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

3. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCO, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  Other Reports

6. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

5:40 PM 

5:00  PM 

5:30  PM 

2



July 6, 2023 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

8. ADJOURNMENT

 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: JULY 20 AND AUGUST 3, 2023 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before July 3, 2023 4:30 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the Board 
Meeting of said Board to be held  on July 6, 2023, at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas Valley Road, 
Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: June 29, 2023 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

5:50 PM 

AGENDA APPROVED: Megan Clark, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

6:00  PM 

3



 

 
 

 

7/6/2023 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



 

 

 Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Greg Pease, Collections Manager 
 (415) 526-1513; gpease@lgvsd.org  
 
 Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
 (415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
 

Mtg. Date: July 6, 2023 

Re: Award of Contract Amendment to Centricity for Cityworks Implementation and 
Antero Migration 

Item Type:   Consent     X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No     (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve award of Contract Amendment No. 1 to Centricity GIS (Centricity) for Cityworks 
Implementation and Antero Migration in the amount of $299,000. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On March 18, 2021, the District Board awarded a contract to Centricity GIS for management of 
assets related to the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion 
(STPURWE) Project utilizing Cityworks Computerized Maintenance Management 
System/Geographic Information System (CMMS/GIS). The contract was designated as Task 1 
leveraging Cityworks as the overall platform for all District assets in the treatment plant and 
reclamation as future tasks. Centricity has completed Task 1 to District satisfaction and the 
Maintenance Department has identified additional tasks required for a fully operational Asset 
Management System (AMS) for the District. 
 
The District currently has asset information stored on multiple platforms and lacks the ability to 
exchange information easily between the different databases. Collection system assets are in 
Cityworks, which the District originally procured in 2016 for the collection system, whereas work 
orders and maintenance records for treatment plant and reclamation are conducted in Antero. In 
response to the Maintenance Department’s request, Centricity submitted the attached proposal to 
address the issue. Amendment 1 scope is comprised of two major components: 1) implement and 
configure one platform, Cityworks AMS, to manage all District assets; and 2) migrate and 
integrate historical data from Antero to Cityworks AMS.  
 
Below are advantages of using Cityworks AMS: 

• Provides comprehensive mapping and geospatial information specific to each asset. 

• Streamlines process flows without the need of navigating multiple platforms. 

• Allows scheduling and assignment of work activities based on priorities and workflow. 
 

Item Number_______2D_________ 

GM Review   _______CP_________ 

 

13

mailto:gpease@lgvsd.org
mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

 Page 2 of 2 

• Provides one central database for inspection results, maintenance logs, reports, work 
orders, and other pertinent information associated with each asset. 

 
Centricity will work closely with key District staff such as Maintenance Manager, Maintenance 
Supervisor, and CMMS Technician to properly configure Cityworks and ensure that it meets 
District needs for asset tracking and work order management. Also, hands-on training and 
support will be provided to maintenance staff for a smooth transition. 
 
Centricity has been working with the District Collections Department since 2016 for 
implementation of Cityworks for collection system assets and providing ongoing support services. 
Hence, it has a comprehensive understanding of the efforts required to incorporate all remaining 
assets into the program for a successful project. District staff has had positive experiences 
working with Centricity and is confident that Centricity is the best fit for the task based on its 
technical capabilities and knowledge of the current LGVSD Cityworks configuration. 
 
The Maintenance Department reviewed the proposal and deemed the proposal reasonable and 
appropriate for its asset management needs.  
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding in the amount $299,000 is within the FY 2023/2024 Budget. 

14



 
 

  

PROPOSAL 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant & 
Antero Migration to Cityworks 
 
 
 
Prepared for:  
 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
ATTN: 
LGVSD 
 
 
June 28, 2023 
 
 
 

 
CONTACT: 
Brandon Wright 
801-376-8160 
bwright@centricitygis.com 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

15



  

Page | 2 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

Table of Contents 
Table of Contents .................................................................................................. 2 
Cover Pages/Executive Summary ......................................................................... 4 
Approach and Methodology ................................................................................... 7 
Firm Description & Project Organization .............................................................. 21 
Qualifications and Past Performance .................................................................. 24 
References ....................................................................................................................... 25 
Implementation Fee/Cost Proposal .............................................................................. 30 

 

16



  

Page | 3 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

  

About Centricity GIS 

Introduction 
Centricity GIS, LLC is a leading GIS 
Consulting company that provides a wide 
range of implementation, data, and 
application development services. Our 
founder, Brandon Wright, is a seasoned 
professional with 20 years of experience 
in GIS, Asset Management, and systems 
integration. All of our technical staff have 
at least 8 years of expertise in their 
respective disciplines, ensuring that we 
deliver high-quality services to our clients. 
 
We are committed to meeting the unique 
needs of our clients and offer tailored 
solutions that meet their specific 
requirements. In addition to providing 
services for specific projects, we also 
provide on-site resources such as 
programmers, analysts, and technicians 
to augment an agency's staff. 
 
As a Cityworks Business Partner, we 
specialize in CMMS and GIS services for 
public agencies such as Cities, Counties, 
and Water Agencies. Our partnership 
allows us to provide the best solutions 
that meet our clients' needs by leveraging 
Cityworks and ESRI technologies. From 
out-of-the-box solutions using Esri's 
ArcGIS for Local Government solutions to 
custom PLL implementations, we help 
agencies realize their return on 
investment as quickly as possible. 
 
At Centricity GIS, we pride ourselves on 
delivering high-quality services, 
leveraging our technical expertise and 
extensive experience in GIS and Asset 
Management. Our goal is to help our 
clients achieve their goals and deliver 
exceptional value 

 
We are located in Cedar Hills, Utah, about 
30 minutes from Cityworks headquarters.  
 

 

Experience. 
Centricity GIS is a full-service asset 
management and permitting consulting 
firm. We serve municipal governments and 
private and public utilities, providing tried-
and-true implementation strategies that 
focus on your business processes, 
workflows, system requirements, and 
training. 
 
With nearly 20 years of experience in the 
Asset Management and Permitting 
Industry, we have performed over 50 
unique Cityworks implementations. Our 
extensive knowledge in system design and 
implementation allows us to leverage the 
flexibility and power of the Cityworks 
platform. 
 
We also have in-house developers that 
specialize in core Cityworks integrations 
and development tools. Our expertise in 
permitting enables us to be efficient and 
effective during all phases of 
implementation. We have a proven track 
record of integrating Cityworks with many 
types of systems. 

 
17



  

Page | 4 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

 

Cover Pages/Executive Summary 
June 28, 2023 
 
Subject: Cityworks AMS Software Solution and Migration from Antero – Sewer 
Treatment 
 
LGVSD: 
 
We are pleased to provide you with an implementation summary for the 
Cityworks Asset Management System (AMS) for the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District (LGVSD) Sewer Treatment Group. Our primary goal is to ensure a 
smooth transition from Antero to Cityworks AMS, maintaining and enhancing the 
existing GIS assets and asset management data. 
 
Project Overview: 
The implementation of Cityworks AMS for the LGVSD Sewer Treatment Group 
will consist of the following key stages: 
 

1. Project initiation and planning 
2. System configuration and customization 
3. Data migration from Antero to Cityworks AMS 
4. Integration with GIS assets 
5. Training and user support 
6. System testing and validation 
7. Go-live and post-implementation support 

 
Stage 1: Project Initiation and Planning 
We will start by establishing a dedicated project team, comprising 
representatives from LGVSD, GIS experts, and Cityworks implementation 
specialists. The project team will collaborate on defining the project scope, 
schedule, and resource requirements. A detailed project plan will be created to 
ensure a timely and efficient implementation. 
 
Stage 2: System Configuration and Customization 
Our Cityworks implementation specialists will work with LGVSD staff to configure 
the system according to your requirements. This includes setting up custom 
fields, workflows, and asset management processes specific to the Sewer 
Treatment Group. 
 
Stage 3: Data Migration from Antero to Cityworks AMS 
We will develop a data migration plan to transfer all asset management data, 
including historical records, from Antero to Cityworks AMS. A comprehensive 
data mapping and validation process will be conducted to ensure data integrity 
and compatibility. 
 
Stage 4: Integration with GIS Assets 

18



  

Page | 5 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

Cityworks AMS will be integrated with the existing GIS assets, enabling seamless 
visualization and management of spatial data. Our GIS experts will work with 
LGVSD's GIS team to establish the necessary connections and perform any 
required data conversions. 
 
Stage 5: Training and User Support 
We will provide tailored training sessions for LGVSD staff, focusing on Cityworks 
AMS functionality and best practices for the Sewer Treatment Group. Additional 
user support will be available throughout the implementation process to ensure a 
smooth transition. 
 
Stage 6: System Testing and Validation 
A thorough testing and validation phase will be conducted to confirm that 
Cityworks AMS meets LGVSD's requirements and expectations. The project 
team will work together to address any issues and make necessary adjustments 
before going live. 
 
Stage 7: Go-live and Post-implementation Support 
After successful testing and validation, Cityworks AMS will be launched for the 
Sewer Treatment Group. Our team will continue to provide post-implementation 
support, including system updates, issue resolution, and ongoing training as 
needed. 
 
We are confident that the Cityworks AMS implementation will significantly 
enhance the LGVSD Sewer Treatment Group's asset management capabilities 
and streamline your operations. We look forward to working closely with your 
team throughout the implementation process and ensuring a successful 
transition. 
 
Overall, we believe that the Cityworks software solution is the right fit for the City, 
and we are committed to providing you with a robust, scalable, and reliable 
software solution that can meet their evolving needs. We look forward to the 
opportunity to work with the District and deliver a software solution that will 
transform your service delivery processes and improve data-driven decision-
making. 
 
Centricity GIS, a Cityworks Business Partner based in Cedar Hills, Utah, is 
uniquely qualified to provide these implementation services. Our founder has 
over 19 years of experience completing Cityworks implementation projects, 
having previously worked for Cityworks. 
 
Partnering with us ensures a comprehensive implementation process that 
guarantees a successful Cityworks deployment for your organization. This 
proposal covers the following implementation services: 
 

• GIS Migration from Antero into ESRI GIS 
• Workflow Review Meetings (Onsite) 

19



  

Page | 6 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

• Initial Cityworks AMS Database Configuration for Sewer Treatment 
o Service Requests, Work Orders, Inspections 
o Setup Employees, Materials and Equipment 

• Review of Configured Database (Onsite) 
• Admin User Training (Onsite) 
• End User Training (Onsite) 
• Rollout Support 
• Ad-Hoc Support 
• Data Migration from Antero into Cityworks AMS 

 
This proposal provides information and scoping to support your goals as listed 
and we look forward to demonstrating our capabilities through our software and 
extensive client references locally and throughout the US.  We look forward to a 
long business relationship with LGVSD and help it become a more efficient, 
strategic and GIS data driven organization for many years to come. 
 
 
In summary, our project approach is designed to ensure that the District receives 
a customized, user-friendly, and scalable Cityworks AMS software solution that 
meets their specific requirements. We are committed to providing ongoing 
support to ensure that the software remains operational and meets the District's 
evolving needs. 
 
Sincerely,      
 
 
Brandon Wright    
Founder | President 
801-376-8160 
  

20



  

Page | 7 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

Approach and Methodology  
 
A. INTRODUCTION 
The implementation of a Cityworks Asset Management System (AMS) is a 
significant undertaking for any organization. It involves the integration of 
software, hardware, data, and business processes to enable the efficient 
management of assets, work orders, service requests, inspections, and reports. 
The success of the implementation depends on a well-planned approach that 
considers the organization's objectives, requirements, resources, and timelines. 
 
B. OVERVIEW 
This project approach is designed to provide a comprehensive framework for the 
Cityworks AMS implementation. The approach will consist of the following 
phases: 
 

1. Discovery Phase (Kickoff Meetings): During this phase, the project 
team will work with the organization's stakeholders to understand the 
current asset management processes, systems, and data. The project 
team will identify the business requirements, objectives, and success 
factors for the Cityworks AMS implementation. The outcome of this phase 
will be a comprehensive understanding of the organization's current state 
and a roadmap for the future. 

 
2. Design Phase (Database Configuration and Antero Data Migration for 

GIS Asset Hierarchy): During this phase, the project team will design the 
Cityworks AMS solution based on the business requirements and 
objectives. The team will develop the functional and technical 
specifications, data migration plan, integration plan, and customizations. 
The team will also design the user interface, workflows, and reports. The 
outcome of this phase will be a detailed design of the Cityworks AMS 
solution. The Antero GIS data migration from Antero and into ESRI 
ArcGIS is also included in this phase to ensure that a smooth and 
seamless data migration from Antero is available in Cityworks AMS via 
ESRI ArcGIS Asset Hierarchy. 

 
3. Development Phase (Database Review and Additional Information 

Config, Historical Data Migration): During this phase, the project team 
will develop and configure the Cityworks AMS solution. The team will 
implement the functional and technical specifications, data migration plan, 
integration plan, and customizations. The team will also develop the user 
interface, workflows, and reports. The outcome of this phase will be a fully 

21



  

Page | 8 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

functional Cityworks AMS solution. This phase also includes the Historical 
Data Migration (Asset Maintenance) from Antero into Cityworks AMS. 

 
4. Testing Phase (User Acceptance Testing): During this phase, the 

project team will test the Cityworks AMS solution to ensure that it meets 
the business requirements and objectives. The team will perform unit, 
integration, system, and user acceptance testing. The team will also 
identify and resolve any defects. The outcome of this phase will be a fully 
tested and validated Cityworks AMS solution. 

 
5. Deployment Phase (Admin & End User Training, Go Live Support): 

During this phase, the project team will deploy the Cityworks AMS solution 
into the production environment. The team will perform the data migration, 
system configuration, and user training. The team will also provide post-
deployment support to ensure the solution is fully operational. The 
outcome of this phase will be a fully deployed Cityworks AMS solution. 

 
6. Post-Deployment Phase (Ad-Hoc Support): During this phase, the 

project team will provide post-deployment support and maintenance to 
ensure the Cityworks AMS solution is operating at peak performance. The 
team will also perform a post-implementation review to identify any 
lessons learned and opportunities for improvement. The outcome of this 
phase will be a fully operational and optimized Cityworks AMS solution. 

 
Conclusion: 
This project approach provides a structured and comprehensive framework for 
the Cityworks AMS implementation. The approach considers the organization's 
objectives, requirements, resources, and timelines. It ensures that the Cityworks 
AMS solution is designed, developed, tested, deployed, and supported to meet 
the organization's needs and expectations. The project team will work closely 
with the organization's stakeholders to ensure a successful implementation that 
delivers tangible benefits and ROI. 
 
  

22



  

Page | 9 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

Scope: 
This scope of work identifies the tasks required for the successful implementation 
of Cityworks for LGVSD Cityworks AMS. Centricity GIS understands that the 
following requirements have been identified by the District’s and will be included 
in implementation: 
 

• Workflow Review Meetings (Onsite) 
• Initial Cityworks AMS Database Configuration for Sewer Treatment 

o Service Requests, Work Orders, Inspections 
o Setup Employees, Materials and Equipment 
o GIS Migration from Antero into ESRI GIS 

• Review of Configured Database (Onsite) 
• Admin User Training (Onsite) 
• End User Training (Onsite) 
• Rollout Support 
• Ad-Hoc Support 
• Data Migration from Antero into Cityworks AMS 

 
We’ll ensure that all of these requirements are met during the implementation 
process and that the final Cityworks solution is tailored to the District’s specific 
needs. Our team is dedicated to providing a successful and streamlined 
implementation experience. 
 
 
  

23



  

Page | 10 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

TASK 1: WORKFLOW REVIEW MEETING (ONSITE) 
Meet with District staff to review workflows that will be created and configured in 
the Cityworks AMS Application. This meeting provides an opportunity for the 
client to review and refine their workflows within the system, ensuring that the 
system is set up to meet their specific needs and processes.  
 
During the meeting, the Cityworks team works with the client to review their 
existing workflows and identify any areas where improvements can be made. 
The team then recommends changes and modifications to the workflows, based 
on best practices and industry standards. The District has the opportunity to 
provide feedback and input, and to ask any questions they may have about the 
changes being proposed. 
 
The Workflow Review Meeting is an essential step in ensuring that the Cityworks 
AMS system is configured to support the client's business processes and 
workflows. By optimizing these workflows, the client can improve their 
operational efficiency, reduce costs, and ensure that their assets are managed 
effectively. The Cityworks team's expertise in asset management and their in-
depth understanding of the Cityworks AMS system ensures that the workflows 
are optimized and designed to deliver the best possible outcomes for the District. 
 
Tasks: 

1. Meet with District staff to review and understand the District workflows. 
2. Get documentation from District that will provide the basis for the Business 

Unit AMS configuration. 
a. Print Documents 
b. Reports 
c. Diagrams, Etc. 

Deliverable Milestones: 

a. Meeting Notes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

24



  

Page | 11 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

 
TASK 2: INITIAL CITYWORKS SYSTEM DESIGN & CONFIGURATION  
Configuration of Cityworks system and database. During this phase, the 
Cityworks team works with the client to design and configure the system to meet 
their specific needs. This involves identifying the client's asset types, data 
requirements, workflows, and business processes, and then configuring the 
system accordingly. 
 
The Initial Cityworks System Design & Configuration is an important step in the 
Cityworks AMS implementation process because it lays the foundation for the 
entire system. A well-designed and configured system can help organizations 
streamline their operations, improve data accuracy, and make better decisions 
about their assets. By working closely with the client during this phase, the 
Cityworks team can ensure that the system is tailored to their needs and will 
deliver maximum value over the long term. 
 
Tasks: 

1. Cityworks Database Configuration for Sewer Treatment Plant 
2. Workflows 

a. Service Requests 
b. Work Orders 
c. Inspections 
d. Employees, Material, Equipment 
e. Etc. 

3. GIS Migration from Antero into ESRI GIS 
4. Reports  
5. GIS Integration 
6. Field Module Setup 

Deliverable Milestones: 

a. Configured Database 
 
 
  

25



  

Page | 12 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

TASK 3: DATABASE REVIEW (ONSITE) 
Meet with District staff to review workflows and Cityworks setup that has been 
configured. This task involves a comprehensive review of the District’s setup 
asset data and Cityworks information, with the aim of ensuring that the data is 
accurate, complete, and well-organized. 
 
Tasks: 

1. Database Review 
2. Workflow changes and configuration changes as needed 

a. Onsite Workshops 
b. Configuration and Documentation 
c. Demonstrate Configuration 
d. LGVSD Internal Review and Feedback 

 

Deliverable Milestones: 

a. Meeting Notes 
b. Configuration changes 

 
 

TASK 4: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONFIGURATION (REMOTE) 
Centricity GIS will configure additional information collected as part of application 
forms, fees and deposits, contractor types, and any additional, ancillary 
application data that needs to be tracked inside of Cityworks. 

 
Tasks: 

1. Configure additional info 
2. Up to 20 Custom Crystal Reports 
3. Configure Office Inboxes for End Users (up to 2 inboxes per user) 
4. Configure Respond Inboxes for End Users (up to 2 inboxes per user) 
5. Creation of Saved Searches for Inboxes 
6. Creation of Saved Advanced Queries for Respond Dashboards 

Deliverable Milestones: 

a. Meeting Notes 
b. Any additional configuration changes and Inboxes 

and Dashboards 
 

26



  

Page | 13 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

 
TASK 5: ADMIN TRAINING (ONSITE) 
Centricity GIS will provide onsite Admin training for Cityworks. The District will 
provide the training facility and computers necessary for staff use. The Admin 
users will be identified during the kickoff and Configuration phases of the 
implementation. 
 
Following the training of Administrator users, Centricity GIS will conduct a “Train- 
the-Trainer” style session with key department staff. The purpose of this training 
is to provide knowledge and steps necessary to train all other field personnel who 
will use the system. 
 
Reporting – During the Admin Training, Crystal Reports training will also be 
covered to ensure that the Admin staff from the District are well training in 
creating additional custom reports as needed for the District. 
 
Searching/Reporting within Cityworks will also be covered heavily in the Admin 
training to ensure a deep knowledge of how to extract and organize data from 
Cityworks is understood. 

Deliverable Milestones: 

a. Admin Training 
b. Report Training 
c. Copy of training material used in training session 

delivered in digital format (PDF) 
d. Preparation for Go-live 

  

27



  

Page | 14 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

TASK 6: END USER TRAINING (ONSITE) 
Centricity GIS will provide onsite training for the primary, or “End Users” of 
Cityworks. The District will provide the training facility and computers necessary 
for staff use.  
 
The purpose of this training is to provide knowledge and steps necessary to train 
all other field personnel who will use the system. 
 
Training will occur over 1 days 

Deliverable Milestones: 

a. User Training completed 
b. Copy of training material used in training session 

delivered in digital format (PDF) 
c. Go-live 

  

28



  

Page | 15 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

TASK 7: USER ACCEPTANCE TESTING 
The objective of this UAT plan is to ensure that the Cityworks AMS 
implementation meets all the business requirements and that the end-users are 
satisfied with the system's functionality, usability, and reliability. 
 
The scope of this UAT plan includes all the modules and functionalities of the 
Cityworks AMS implementation, including asset management, work orders, 
inspections, service requests, and reports. 
 
The UAT team will be composed of representatives from different departments 
and roles, including the project sponsor, business owners, end-users, and IT 
staff. 
 
The testing environment will be a mirror of the production environment, with the 
same hardware, software, and data. The UAT team will have access to the 
Cityworks AMS implementation in a sandbox environment, which will not affect 
the live data. 
 
The test plan will include the following phases: 
 
Test Case Development: The UAT team will develop test cases based on the 
business requirements, use cases, and workflows. The test cases will cover all 
the functionalities and scenarios, including positive and negative tests, user 
interface tests, integration tests, and performance tests. 
 
Test Execution: The UAT team will execute the test cases and document the 
results. The test execution will follow a structured approach, including setup, 
execution, and validation of each test case. 
 
Defect Management: The UAT team will document any defects found during the 
testing, including the steps to reproduce, severity, and priority. The defects will 
be logged into the defect management system and tracked until resolution. 
 
Test Reporting: The UAT team will provide regular reports to the project team 
on the testing progress, including the test results, defect status, and overall test 
coverage. 
 
Acceptance Criteria 
The Cityworks AMS implementation will be considered accepted if the following 
criteria are met: 
 

29



  

Page | 16 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

All the test cases have been executed, and no critical or high severity defects are 
outstanding. 
 
The end-users are satisfied with the system's functionality, usability, and 
reliability. 
 
The system meets all the business requirements and objectives. 
Sign-Off 
 
Once the UAT is completed, the project sponsor will review the test results and 
provide the final sign-off on the Cityworks AMS implementation. The sign-off will 
indicate that the system meets all the acceptance criteria and is ready for 
production deployment. 
 
This UAT plan provides a structured approach to testing the Cityworks AMS 
implementation and ensuring that it meets the business requirements and end-
users' expectations. The UAT team will work closely with the project team and IT 
staff to identify and resolve any issues before the system is deployed into 
production. 

Deliverable Milestones: 

a. UAT Complete 
b. Testing Reports Compiled 
c. System Signoff Complete 

  

30



  

Page | 17 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

TASK 8: ROLLOUT SUPPORT (ONSITE) 
After the configuration, installation and training phases have concluded, we will 
provide Onsite rollout support. 

1. Determine with department manager/champion what data/inboxes need to 
be displayed. 

2. Build Dashboards – Build end user and management inboxes/dashboards 
3. Cityworks Reconfiguration that needs completed based on Work Flow 

Meetings and Admin training. 
4. Configuration of Mobile Apps. 

Deliverable Milestones: 

a. Onsite Roll Out Support 
 
  

31



  

Page | 18 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

TASK 9: AD-HOC SUPPORT 
After the configuration, installation and training phases have concluded, we will 
provide troubleshooting and support services. Used as needed up to 120 
hours. 
 

1. Determine with department manager/champion what data/inboxes need to 
be displayed. 

2. Build Inboxes – Build end user and management inboxes 
3. Cityworks Reconfiguration that needs completed based on Work Flow 

Meetings and Admin training. 
4. Configuration of Mobile Apps (if applicable licenses from Cityworks apply) 
5. Crystal Report Development 
6. Dashboards and KPI’s 

 

Deliverable Milestones: 

a. Support as needed at negotiate rate of $200/hr  

32



  

Page | 19 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

TASK 10: HISTORICAL DATA MIGRATION FROM ANTERO 
Historical data migration is a critical task in the implementation of Cityworks 
Asset Management System (AMS) as it involves the transfer of all the historical 
work history from an old system to the new system. This task requires careful 
planning, preparation, and execution to ensure that all data is accurately 
transferred and seamlessly integrated into the new system. 
 
The first step in the historical data migration task is to identify the source system 
and the data that needs to be migrated. The source system should be thoroughly 
reviewed to ensure that all relevant data is identified and extracted for migration. 
This process may involve working with legacy system administrators or IT staff to 
extract data from legacy databases, which can be in different formats and 
structures. 
 
Once the source data has been identified, the next step is to clean and prepare 
the data for migration. This process involves data scrubbing, data mapping, and 
data transformation to ensure that the data is compatible with Cityworks AMS. 
This step also involves the development of custom scripts or programs to convert 
data into the required format for import. 
 
The data migration itself involves importing the prepared data into Cityworks 
AMS. This process requires careful execution to ensure that all data is accurately 
transferred, and no data is lost or corrupted during the migration process. 
Depending on the size and complexity of the data, this process may take several 
hours or even days to complete. 
 
After the data has been migrated, the next step is to test the data to ensure that it 
has been accurately transferred and integrated into the new system. This 
involves running a series of tests to ensure that all data is present and accounted 
for and that the data is accessible and usable within Cityworks AMS. 
 
Finally, after the historical data migration has been completed and verified, it is 
essential to provide training and support to end-users. This includes training on 
how to access and use the migrated data, as well as providing ongoing support 
to ensure that any issues or questions are promptly addressed. 
 
Overall, the historical data migration task is critical to the success of a Cityworks 
AMS implementation. It requires careful planning, preparation, and execution to 
ensure that all historical work history data is accurately transferred and 
seamlessly integrated into the new system. 
 

33



  

Page | 20 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

Deliverable Milestones: 

a. Data mapping and conversion plan 
b. Data migration scripts or programs 
c. Import log 
d. Test plans and test cases 
e. Data migration completion report 

 
  

34



  

Page | 21 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

Firm Description & Project Organization 
 
Centricity GIS, LLC is a premier multi-service organization that specializes in 
Field Asset Surveying, Geographic Information Systems (GIS), and application 
software services. Our team of experienced professionals provides a 
comprehensive range of services, including consulting, training, staffing, and 
technical support to meet the diverse needs of our clients. 
 
We are committed to delivering the highest quality GIS-centric and Cityworks 
implementation projects, particularly in the utility industry for Water, Sewer, 
Storm, Gas, and Electric. Our team has over 20 years of experience in GIS and 
25 years in Cityworks implementation, backed by a wealth of industry and 
technical expertise. 
 
At Centricity GIS, we take pride in setting the standard for excellence in GIS and 
Cityworks implementation. We strive to provide our clients with the most 
innovative and effective solutions to help them achieve their goals and maximize 
their return on investment. 
 
CENTRICITY GIS is a Dun & Bradstreet verified business (DUNS 
08-085-9425).  
 
Partners:  

- Cityworks Business Partner Network 
- ESRI Silver Partner 

 
 
 

 
  

35



  

Page | 22 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

 
Management 
Brandon Wright, the founder of Centricity GIS, LLC, is a highly accomplished 
professional with over 19 years of experience in Cityworks and GIS within the 
Asset Management industry. He graduated from the University of Colorado, USA, 
with a B.S. degree in Business Information Systems. 
 
Mr. Wright has successfully completed over 50 Cityworks related projects, 
primarily implementing Cityworks systems with government agencies throughout 
the United States. His core competency is in implementing Cityworks Asset 
Management solutions for government agencies, including Water, Wastewater, 
Parks & Recreation, and more. 
 
As the leader of Centricity GIS, Mr. Wright manages strategic planning, business 
development, and company operations. He also serves as the client liaison 
officer on all projects, overseeing scope, schedule, budget, and time frame. 
 
Mr. Wright's specialties include Asset Management, Data Conversion, and 
Project Implementation. He is known for his exceptional project management 
skills and his ability to deliver high-quality results on time and within budget. His 
expertise and leadership have enabled Centricity GIS to become a trusted 
partner for government agencies and other organizations seeking GIS and Asset 
Management solutions. 
 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT APPROACH: 
Initiation: At the initiation stage, we will define the scope of the project, identify 
the stakeholders, and assess the feasibility of the project. We will also develop a 
project charter that outlines the project goals, objectives, and timelines. 
 
Planning: In the planning phase, we will create a detailed project plan that 
includes a work breakdown structure (WBS), project schedule, resource 
allocation, and risk management plan. We will also define the project 
requirements, deliverables, and acceptance criteria. 
 
Execution: During the execution phase, we will implement the project plan, 
monitor the progress of the project, and manage any changes to the scope, 
schedule, or resources. We will also ensure that the project deliverables are 
produced according to the specifications and quality standards. 
 
Monitoring and Control: The monitoring and control phase involves tracking the 
progress of the project against the project plan, identifying any deviations from 
the plan, and taking corrective actions to keep the project on track. We will also 
manage project risks, communicate progress to stakeholders, and ensure that 
project documentation is up to date. 
 
Closure: In the closure phase, we will deliver the project deliverables, conduct a 
final review of the project, and obtain approval from stakeholders. We will also 

36



  

Page | 23 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

close out the project, including archiving project documents and conducting a 
lessons learned review to identify areas for improvement. 
 
By following this project management approach, Centricity GIS, LLC will ensure 
that its projects are completed on time, within budget, and to the satisfaction of 
its stakeholders. 
 
Software Skills 
GIS Software: ArcGIS Desktop, ArcGIS Online, ArcGIS Server, ArcGIS Pro 
 
Asset Management Software: Cityworks PLL and AMS 
 
Databases: Access, SQL Server, Oracle, Geodatabase 
 
Reporting Tools: Crystal Reports, SQL Server Reporting Services 
  

37



  

Page | 24 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

Qualifications and Past Performance 
 
The following table shows the combined project experience of our team. 

• Centricity GIS Reference Sites 
 

 
 

  

38



  

Page | 25 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

References 

•  

 

Item Proposer Response 
Client Reference No. 1 – Existing 

  
Name City of Santa Cruz, CA 
Number of Employees 300+ 
Population 61,950 (2021) 
Contact Name Ken Morgan 
Contact Title Director of IT 
Contact Telephone Number 831-420-5095 
Contact E-Mail Address kmorgan@santacruzca.gov 
Products, Modules, Services Provider by Proposer Cityworks AMS Water and Wastewater. Vertical Assets and 

Coastline Management 
Implementation Kick Off Date October 2022 
Go Live Date Estimated July 2023 
Rationale for including the specific reference Current client in the state of California implementing 
Name of prior replaces/upgraded system NA 

Client Reference No. 2 – Existing  

 
Name City of Salinas, CA 
Number of Employees 100+ 
Population 162,000 
Contact Name Eric Sandoval 
Contact Title GIS Administrator 
Contact Telephone Number 831-758-7166 
Contact E-Mail Address erics@ci.salinas.ca.us 
Products, Modules, Services Provider by Proposer Cityworks AMS for Parks and Facilities 
Implementation Kick Off Date August 2022 
Go Live Date December 2022 
Rationale for including the specific reference Cityworks California Implementation 
Name of prior replaces/upgraded system None 

39



  

Page | 26 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

 

 
  

Client Reference No. 3 – Existing  

 
Name City of Huntington Beach, CA 
Number of Employees 100+ 
Population 196,652 
Contact Name Bryan Arnado 
Contact Title Utilities Technology Supervisor 
Contact Telephone Number 714-536-5206 
Contact E-Mail Address bryan.arnado@surfcity-hb.org 
Products, Modules, Services Provider by Proposer Cityworks AMS implementation for Parks and Sewer 
Implementation Kick Off Date May 2022 
Go Live Date September 2022 
Rationale for including the specific reference Cityworks Implementation for Parks and Sewer Laterals. 

Expanding to remainder of City. 

Client Reference No. 4 – Existing  

 
Name American Fork City, UT 
Number of Employees 100+ 
Population 35,000 
Contact Name Jay Brems 
Contact Title Water Dept Manager 
Contact Telephone Number 801-404-6129 x58 
Contact E-Mail Address jbrems@americanfork.gov 
Products, Modules, Services Provider by Proposer Cityworks AMS implementation City wide 
Implementation Kick Off Date October 2020 
Go Live Date March 2021 
Rationale for including the specific reference Cityworks City wide implementation. Including Citizen 

Reporting system tied into Cityworks. 
Name of prior replaces/upgraded system Elements 

40



  

Page | 27 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

•  

 

Item Proposer Response 
Client Reference No. 5 – Existing 

 
Name City of Moses Lake, Washington 
Number of Employees 300+ 
Population 24,009 (2018) 
Contact Name Cindy Smith 
Contact Title GIS Program Manager 
Contact Telephone Number 509-764-3754 
Contact E-Mail Address csmith@cityofml.com 
Products, Modules, Services Provider by Proposer Cityworks AMS and PLL. Citywide Implementation. 

Building, Planning, Fire, Code Enforcement. 
Implementation Kick Off Date February 2020 
Go Live Date November 2020 
Rationale for including the specific reference Current client in the state of Washington 
Name of prior replaces/upgraded system Dude Solutions 

Client Reference No. 6 – Existing  

 
Name Park City, Utah 
Number of Employees 100+ 
Population 8500 
Contact Name Scott Barrell 
Contact Title GIS Analyst 
Contact Telephone Number 801-573-5470 
Contact E-Mail Address  

Scott.barrell@parkcity.org 
Products, Modules, Services Provider by Proposer Citywide Cityworks AMS for water distribution and 

treatment 
Implementation Kick Off Date December 1, 2017 
Go Live Date November 1, 2018 
Rationale for including the specific reference Cityworks Water reference site 
Name of prior replaces/upgraded system iWorQ 

41



  

Page | 28 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

 

 
  

Client Reference No. 7 – Existing  

 
Name Dixon, CA 
Number of Employees 100+ 
Population 20,084 
Contact Name Josh Hudson 
Contact Title Operations Supervisor - Water Distribution Division 
Contact Telephone Number 530-682-3265 
Contact E-Mail Address jhudson@cityofdixon.us 
Products, Modules, Services Provider by Proposer Cityworks AMS implementation for Water 
Implementation Kick Off Date November 1, 2020 
Go Live Date May 15, 2021 
Rationale for including the specific reference Full Cityworks AMS Implementation for Water group 

including Facility work orders and inspections. 

Client Reference No. 8 – Existing  

 
Name San Juan Water District 
Number of Employees 100+ 
Population 160,000 
Contact Name David Long 
Contact Title CMMS Coordinator 
Contact Telephone Number 916-791-6927 
Contact E-Mail Address dlong@sjwd.org 
Products, Modules, Services Provider by Proposer Cityworks AMS implementation for Water 
Implementation Kick Off Date 2019 
Go Live Date 9/1/2019 
Rationale for including the specific reference Cityworks for Water Distribution and Treatment.  This 

customer moved away from Maintenance Connection and 
utilized the Esri Utility Network Data Model. They worked 
with HDR on this project. 

Name of prior replaces/upgraded system Maintenance Connection 

42



  

Page | 29 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

 
 
EDUCATION 

 
Bachelor of Science 
Degree, Business 
Information Systems, 
University of Colorado 

 

 
 
 

      
 
 
 

Brandon Wright 
Founder/Project Oversight 

 
Mr. Wright has over 20 years of experience providing Asset Management and GIS 
services to public agencies. Mr. Wright has been responsible for directing asset 
management projects and addressing logistical and technical concerns. Prior to 
working at Centricity GIS, Mr. Wright worked Cityworks for 10 years. 

Services include database development/administration and maintenance, map 
creation, needs assessment, implementation and integration. Integration services 
include integrating GIS databases (SQL Server or Oracle) with other systems such 
as Asset Management Systems, Customer Billing, Document Management and 
Work Orders. He also provides system training, and general IT consulting services.   

Summary of Skills 
 

• Expertise using ESRI’s ArcGIS software products, ArcGIS Desktop 10.x, 
ArcGIS Server, ArcGIS Online 

• Experience in administration of Cityworks AMS & PLL 
• Cityworks PLL Administration Training  
• Expertise in Mapping, GIS Data Modeling, Systems Integration, Needs 

Assessments 
• Over 10 years of Project Management experience 
• Database experience with SQL Server, Oracle, and Microsoft Access 

 
Representative Projects 

 
• Moses Lake, Washington, Cityworks and PLL Implementation 
• Rancho Palos Verdes, Cityworks Implementation  
• Vista Irrigation District, Cityworks Implementation 
• San Mateo, Cityworks Implementation 
• Cook County, IL, Cityworks and PLL Implementation 
• Saratoga Spring, UT, Cityworks and PLL Implementation 
• Houston, TX, Cityworks Implementation/Expansion 
• DDOT (Washington, D.C.), Cityworks Implementation/Expansion 
• Columbia, SC, Cityworks Implementation/Expansion 
• Lafayette, LA, Cityworks Implementation 
• El Paso, TX, Cityworks Implementation/Expansion 
• Apex, NC, Cityworks Implementation 

 
 
  

43



  

Page | 30 
 

Proposal for LGVSD 
Cityworks AMS Implementation for Treatment Plant and Migration from Antero 

June 28, 2023 
 

Implementation Fee/Cost Proposal  
 
Cityworks Implementation Costs 
 
Task Description Total Cost 

1 Workflow Review Meetings (3 Days Onsite)  $      12,000 

  
Kickoff Meeting & Workflow Meetings  
Meeting Notes   

2 Initial Cityworks Database Configuration  $     120,000 
 Configuration for Cityworks AMS  
3 Database Review (3 Days Onsite)  $      12,000 

  
Post Review Changes 
Meeting Notes and Action Items   

4 Additional Information Configuration $       25,000 

 

Dashboards 
Saved Searches 
Inboxes 
Configuration Changes 
Crystal Reports  

5 Admin Training (2 Days)  $       8,000 
 Onsite Admin Training for District Admin Users  
6 End User Training (5 Days Onsite)  $     20,000 
 Onsite End User Training for District Users  
7 User Acceptance and Testing  $     10,000 
 Rollout of UAT Testing   
8 Rollout Support (5 Days Onsite)  $     20,000 

 Onsite Support for End Users when system goes live  

9 Ad-Hoc Support (up to 160 hours) $      32,000 

 

Configuration Changes 
Admin Support 
Dashboards/KPI’s 
Mobile App Configuration 
Any other Ad-Hoc Support that may be needed 
Crystal Report Development 
(Up to 160 Hours) Billed at $200/Hr As Used, Post Go 
Live.  

10 Historical Data Migration $      40,000 

 Historical Data Migration from Antero to Cityworks  

 

 
Total Implementation Including Ad-Hoc Support 
 

 
$     299,000 
 

 

44



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\07062023\ASR F50 Reserves Resolution.docx Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Mtg. Date: July 6, 2023 
Re: Revise Policy F-50 (Reserves) 

Item Type:   Consent   X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable     X        . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt Resolution No. 2023-2314 revising the District Reserve Policy F-50. 

BACKGROUND  
The District Reserve Policy guides the Board and staff on the establishment of reserves, explains 
the purpose and reasons for the size of each reserve, and provides for the oversight of reserves. 
 
On June 15, 2023, the Board reviewed proposed changes to the Reserve policy, including 
updates to target goals and the addition of a new section on restricted reserves. Comments made 
were incorporated below Section F-50-10, the Designated Reserve Fund Policy table. 
 
Policies of the Board are to be updated by resolution. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Reserve Policy was last modified by Board Resolution No. 2022-2255 on May 19, 2022. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None.  The fiscal impact will occur when funds are allocated to reserves as part of the budget 
process and adoption scheduled for June 30, 2023. 
 
 
 

Item Number______2E________ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

 

45

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Resolution No. 2023-2314  Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  2023-2314 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING REVISED BOARD POLICY F-50 RESERVES 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (“Board”) has determined that a comprehensive list 
of Policies and Procedures for the Board is in the best interest of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has compiled a comprehensive list of Policies and Procedures to 
serve as the rules and regulations of the Board; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board did adopt such comprehensive list of Policies and Procedures on 
July 9, 2009; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such policies may need to be updated from time to time; and 
  
 WHEREAS, on June 15, 2023, the Board reviewed and suggested changes to Board 
Financial Policy F-50 Reserves. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
approves the following revised policy section F-50 RESERVES in its entirety. The previously 
approved Board Policy F-50 is hereby revoked and declared null and void. 
 
 If any policy or portion of a policy contained within the Policies and Procedures is in 
conflict with rules, regulations, or legislation having authority over the Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District, said rules, regulations or legislation shall prevail. 
 

The Policies and Procedures shall remain in effect until amended by at least a majority 
vote of the Board of Directors. 
      

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 6th day of July 2023, by the 
following vote of the members thereof: 
 
AYES, and in favor thereof Members:  
NOES, Members:   
ABSENT, Members:  
ABSTAIN, Members:       
        ________________________________ 
        Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary 
      
 
APPROVED:             
 
_________________________________________ 
Megan Clark, Board President  
 

46



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

F-50 RESERVES 

Purpose 

This policy establishes reserves, explains the purpose and reasons for the size of each reserve, 

and provides for the oversight of reserves.  

The District requires reserves for operations and capital needs. Reserves provide financing 

safeguards for the District’s operations. Such funds are available for extraordinary expenses 

and to fund cash flow. In addition, reserve fund investments generate earnings to supplement 

other revenues. 

The District has two types of reserve funds: Designated Reserves and Restricted Reserves. 

Board Designated Reserves are comprised of funds set aside for specific purposes as 

determined by the District Board of Directors, which include, but are not limited to, funding for 

capital facility construction, replacement and refurbishment, and establishing operating and rate 

stabilization. The Board has the authority to redirect the use of the Designated Reserves as the 

needs of the District change. Restricted Reserves are funds held to satisfy limitations set by 

external requirements and restraints of agreements, creditors, grantors, or law. 

F-50-10  Designated Reserve Fund Policies 

PURPOSE 

OPERATING & RATE 
STABILIZATION 
RESERVE  
Fund unexpected 
expense increases or 
offset loss of Sewer 
Service Charge 
revenue. Replenish 
any reserves used 
over a 6-to-10-year 
period. 

VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT 
RESERVE (VERF) 
Fund capital vehicle 
replacement based on 
VERF program. Replenish 
any reserves used to 
adequately fund program 
for 3 to 4 years. 

EMERGENCY 
REPAIR RESERVE 
Fund emergency 
repairs. Replenish 
the reserve over a 2 
to 3 year period. 

CAPITAL RESERVE 
Provide capital for 
major capital projects 
including upgrades 
and expansions. 

TOTAL 
COMBINED 
RESERVES 

CURRENT STATUS 

Target Goal *  
(as of 6/30/23) 

$9,085,46610,000,00
0  

$1,000,0000 $1,000500,000 $411,000,000. $1523,085,4
66500,000 

Balance * 
(as of 06/30/21 
23) Balance 

$2,651,8984,248,594 $1,094,425499,376 $1,,000,000166,667 $3,425,6449,184,772 $8,171,9671
5,099,409 

Percent Reached * 2942% 10150% 10078% 8683% 

Risks  The reserve is used to 
absorb unexpected 
cost increases and 
spread them over 
more than one year. 
Provide for this 
reserve by funding 
from property tax and 
ERAF funds. 

Aging vehicle fleet 
without proper 
replacement funding risks 
operational interruptions 
and sewer overflow 
response delays. 

Balance may be  
used to fund 
working capital 
needs. Fund would 
not be large 
enough to address 
a catastrophic 
event. 

Without a reserve, 
projects are funded 
with current year 
revenue in excess of 
O&M needs; or the 
District has to rely  
on bond financing.  
At the time the 
reserve balance was 
established the District 
had operating and 
capital reserves  
of $10M. 

DRAFT

47



* For the latest Target Goal, Balance, and Percentage Reached refer to the most recently adopted budget. 

LONG-TERM GOALS 

LONG-TERM GOALS 

Basis for Target 
Goal 

7 months of 
operating and debt 
service cash flow 
based on most 
current budget; 
amount  to be 
evaluated annually 
based on proposed 
budget.  Reserve can 
be used to stabilize 
and avoid dramatic 
rate increases. 

VERF program that 
determines useful vehicle 
life, varying from 5 to 10 
years.  Vehicle schedule 
used to develop target 
goal annually as part of 
budget process. 

The cost to repair a 
major pump station 
or other 
infrastructure. 

To provide capital for 
major capital projects 
that span two or more 
years. Accumulated 
depreciation to be 
reviewed and factored 
into setting target to 
have current ratepayer 
pay for the utilization 
of the District’s assets. 

 

The district will build up the reserves based on:  
(a) the annual Construction CPI and (b) annual allocations of property tax and ERAF funds, as available. 

 
Considerations 

Due to the timing of 
revenue receipts an 
increased margin 
would be more 
comfortable. A 
sudden increase in 
costs would have to 
be absorbed by 
operating reserves 
since the rate setting 
process occurs every 
4 to 5 years. 

May not be sufficient to 
fund three or more 
unexpected large vehicle 
or equipment purchases. 

The reserve would 
be able to absorb 
one major repair or 
several smaller 
ones; a catastrophic 
event would 
require federal or 
state funding. 

Should be sufficient 
for cash funding or 
regular projects but 
may not be enough for 
larger infrastructure 
replacements where 
debt may be incurred. 

 

 

F-50-15  Target Goal and Balances. The target goal varies by reserve fund and is developed 

annually as part of the budget process.  Target goals may change as future budgets are 

adopted. For the latest balances refer to the most recently adopted budget. 

F-50-20  Use of Designated Reserves. Upon recommendation of the General Manager, the 

Board shall identify the reserve to be utilized and authorize the General Manger to transfer 

reserve funds to the respective operational or capital funds as part of the budget process. Any 

use outside of the budget process shall be reflected in any  revised budget or by resolution of 

the Board. 

 

F-50-30  Restricted Reserves 

Capacity Connection Fee Fund: Cash available from the collection of Capital Facilities Charge 

Connection Fees is kept in a separate fund. The fee is charged to developers based upon the 

estimated cost to construct additional capacity to serve the new development. These funds are 

restricted by law for expansion of sewer facilities that increase capacity within the District’s 

service area. Funds are disbursed from the reserve as expenditures are incurred to increase 

system capacity to serve the new connections that contributed to the fund through fees 

collected. The fund balance accrues interest monthly. (Government Code § 66013(c)). 

Captains Cove Fund: In 2003, the District entered into an agreement with the Captain’s Cove 

Homeowner’s Association to accept into the public sewer system the private sewer pumping 

and collections systems serving Captain’s Cove, a 160-unit condominium project. A special 

sewer service charge surcharge is collected annually to fund the maintenance and operational 

costs of the disproportionate number of pump stations within the community. Funds are 

48



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

 
 

Resolution No. 2022-22552023-2314 Date Approved: *** DRAFT ****July 6, 2023 

President of the Board 
 

Last Revised: May 19, 2022May 19, 2022 

 

disbursed from the reserve to cover Operating and Maintenance costs which include, but are 

not limited to, the following: the actual cost of labor (including general and administrative 

overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges, 

consumables (such as electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced components as 

necessary. Use of funding for capital outlay projects that serve Captain’s Cove is identified as 

part of the budget process and must be approved by Board action. 

Marin Lagoon Fund: In 1989, the District approved a sanitary sewerage system necessary to 

serve the community of Marin Lagoon. The cost of maintenance and operation of (9) nine 

sanitary sewerage lift stations are far in excess of those costs incurred by the District in 

providing such service to other parts of the District. A special sewer service charge surcharge is 

collected annually to fund the maintenance and operational costs of the disproportionate 

number of sanitary sewerage lift stations within the community. Funds are disbursed from the 

reserve to cover Operating and Maintenance costs which include, but are not limited to, the 

following: the actual cost of labor (including general and administrative overhead plus tools and 

supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges, consumables (such as electrical 

power), and spare parts and/or replaced components as necessary. Use of funding for capital 

outlay projects that serve Marin Lagoon is identified as part of the budget process and must be 

approved by Board action. 

Recycled Water Capital Repair and Replacement Fund: The 2017 agreement between Las 

Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“Producer”) and Marin Municipal Water District (“Distributor”) 

for purchase and sale of recycled water includes a requirement that the Producer establish and 

maintain a separate fund for capital repair and replacement costs of the Recycled Water 

Treatment Facility (“RWTF”) constructed as part of the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade 

Recycled Water Expansion Project. Both the Producer and Distributor pay into the fund by 

multiplying the total annual  Operation and Maintenance Costs charged to the RWTF by 10%. 

The fund will pay for any items that cost more than five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) and have a 

useful life of more than one year. Capital repair or replacement items or projects costing less 

than $5,000 will be charged to the Producer’s Operation and Maintenance budget. The Capital 

Repair and Replacement Fund shall not exceed $500,000 in total, and such funds shall only be 

used for capital repair and replacement costs of the RWTF. The fund balance accrues interest 

monthly. 

  

49



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

 
 
F-50 RESERVES 

Purpose 

This policy establishes reserves, explains the purpose and reasons for the size of each reserve, 

and provides for the oversight of reserves.  

 

The District requires reserves for operations and capital needs. Reserves provide financing 

safeguards for the District’s operations. Such funds are available for extraordinary expenses 

and to fund cash flow. In addition, reserve fund investments generate earnings to supplement 

other revenues. 

 

The District has two types of reserve funds: Designated Reserves and Restricted Reserves. 

Board Designated Reserves are comprised of funds set aside for specific purposes as 

determined by the District Board of Directors, which include, but are not limited to, funding for 

capital facility construction, replacement and refurbishment, and establishing operating and rate 

stabilization. The Board has the authority to redirect the use of the Designated Reserves as the 

needs of the District change. Restricted Reserves are funds held to satisfy limitations set by 

external requirements and restraints of agreements, creditors, grantors, or law. 

 
F-50-10  Designated Reserve Fund Policies 

PURPOSE 

OPERATING & RATE 
STABILIZATION 
RESERVE  
Fund unexpected 
expense increases or 
offset loss of Sewer 
Service Charge 
revenue. Replenish 
any reserves used 
over a 6-to-10-year 
period. 

VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT 
RESERVE (VERF) 
Fund capital vehicle 
replacement based on 
VERF program. Replenish 
any reserves used to 
adequately fund program 
for 3 to 4 years. 

EMERGENCY 
REPAIR RESERVE 
Fund emergency 
repairs. Replenish 
the reserve over a 2 
to 3 year period. 

CAPITAL RESERVE 
Provide capital for 
major capital projects 
including upgrades 
and expansions. 

TOTAL 
COMBINED 
RESERVES 

CURRENT STATUS 

Target Goal *      
(as of 6/30/23) 

$10,000,000  $1,000,0000 $1,500,000 $11,000,000. $23,500,000 

Balance * 
(as of 06/30/23)  

$4,248,594 $499,376 $1,166,667 $9,184,772 $15,099,409 

Percent Reached * 42% 50% 78% 83%  

Risks  The reserve is used to 
absorb unexpected 
cost increases and 
spread them over 
more than one year. 
Provide for this 
reserve by funding 
from property tax and 
ERAF funds. 

Aging vehicle fleet 
without proper 
replacement funding risks 
operational interruptions 
and sewer overflow 
response delays. 

Balance may be  
used to fund 
working capital 
needs. Fund would 
not be large 
enough to address 
a catastrophic 
event. 

Without a reserve, 
projects are funded 
with current year 
revenue in excess of 
O&M needs; or the 
District has to rely  
on bond financing.  
At the time the 
reserve balance was 
established the District 
had operating and 
capital reserves  
of $10M. 

 

* For the latest Target Goal, Balance, and Percentage Reached refer to the most recently adopted budget. 

50



 

LONG-TERM GOALS 

Basis for Target 
Goal 

7 months of 
operating and debt 
service cash flow 
based on most 
current budget; 
amount  to be 
evaluated annually 
based on proposed 
budget.  Reserve can 
be used to stabilize 
and avoid dramatic 
rate increases. 

VERF program that 
determines useful vehicle 
life, varying from 5 to 10 
years.  Vehicle schedule 
used to develop target 
goal annually as part of 
budget process. 

The cost to repair a 
major pump station 
or other 
infrastructure. 

To provide capital for 
major capital projects 
that span two or more 
years. Accumulated 
depreciation to be 
reviewed and factored 
into setting target to 
have current ratepayer 
pay for the utilization 
of the District’s assets. 

 

The district will build up the reserves based on:  
(a) the annual Construction CPI and (b) annual allocations of property tax and ERAF funds, as available. 

 
Considerations 

Due to the timing of 
revenue receipts an 
increased margin 
would be more 
comfortable. A 
sudden increase in 
costs would have to 
be absorbed by 
operating reserves 
since the rate setting 
process occurs every 
4 to 5 years. 

May not be sufficient to 
fund three or more 
unexpected large vehicle 
or equipment purchases. 

The reserve would 
be able to absorb 
one major repair or 
several smaller 
ones; a catastrophic 
event would 
require federal or 
state funding. 

Should be sufficient 
for cash funding or 
regular projects but 
may not be enough for 
larger infrastructure 
replacements where 
debt may be incurred. 

 

 

F-50-15  Target Goal and Balances. The target goal varies by reserve fund and is developed 

annually as part of the budget process.  Target goals may change as future budgets are 

adopted. For the latest balances refer to the most recently adopted budget. 

F-50-20  Use of Designated Reserves. Upon recommendation of the General Manager, the 

Board shall identify the reserve to be utilized and authorize the General Manger to transfer 

reserve funds to the respective operational or capital funds as part of the budget process. Any 

use outside of the budget process shall be reflected in a revised budget or by resolution of the 

Board. 

 

F-50-30  Restricted Reserves 

Capacity Connection Fee Fund: Cash available from the collection of Capital Facilities Charge 

Connection Fees is kept in a separate fund. The fee is charged to developers based upon the 

estimated cost to construct additional capacity to serve the new development. These funds are 

restricted by law for expansion of sewer facilities that increase capacity within the District’s 

service area. Funds are disbursed from the reserve as expenditures are incurred to increase 

system capacity to serve the new connections that contributed to the fund through fees 

collected. The fund balance accrues interest monthly. (Government Code § 66013(c)). 

Captains Cove Fund: In 2003, the District entered into an agreement with the Captain’s Cove 

Homeowner’s Association to accept into the public sewer system the private sewer pumping 

and collections systems serving Captain’s Cove, a 160-unit condominium project. A special 

sewer service charge surcharge is collected annually to fund the maintenance and operational 

costs of the disproportionate number of pump stations within the community. Funds are 

disbursed from the reserve to cover Operating and Maintenance costs which include, but are 

51



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

 
 

Resolution No. 2023-2314 Date Approved: July 6, 2023 

President of the Board 
 

Last Revised: May 19, 2022 

 

not limited to, the following: the actual cost of labor (including general and administrative 

overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges, 

consumables (such as electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced components as 

necessary. Use of funding for capital outlay projects that serve Captain’s Cove is identified as 

part of the budget process and must be approved by Board action. 

Marin Lagoon Fund: In 1989, the District approved a sanitary sewerage system necessary to 

serve the community of Marin Lagoon. The cost of maintenance and operation of (9) nine 

sanitary sewerage lift stations are far in excess of those costs incurred by the District in 

providing such service to other parts of the District. A special sewer service charge surcharge is 

collected annually to fund the maintenance and operational costs of the disproportionate 

number of sanitary sewerage lift stations within the community. Funds are disbursed from the 

reserve to cover Operating and Maintenance costs which include, but are not limited to, the 

following: the actual cost of labor (including general and administrative overhead plus tools and 

supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges, consumables (such as electrical 

power), and spare parts and/or replaced components as necessary. Use of funding for capital 

outlay projects that serve Marin Lagoon is identified as part of the budget process and must be 

approved by Board action. 

Recycled Water Capital Repair and Replacement Fund: The 2017 agreement between Las 

Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“Producer”) and Marin Municipal Water District (“Distributor”) 

for purchase and sale of recycled water includes a requirement that the Producer establish and 

maintain a separate fund for capital repair and replacement costs of the Recycled Water 

Treatment Facility (“RWTF”) constructed as part of the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade 

Recycled Water Expansion Project. Both the Producer and Distributor pay into the fund by 

multiplying the total annual Operation and Maintenance Costs charged to the RWTF by 10%. 

The fund will pay for any items that cost more than five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) and have a 

useful life of more than one year. Capital repair or replacement items or projects costing less 

than $5,000 will be charged to the Producer’s Operation and Maintenance budget. The Capital 

Repair and Replacement Fund shall not exceed $500,000 in total, and such funds shall only be 

used for capital repair and replacement costs of the RWTF. The fund balance accrues interest 

monthly. 

  

52



53



54



 

 
 

 

7/6/2023 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

55



 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 
To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
 (415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: July 6, 2023 

Re: Proposed Ordinance 193 – Amendment to Title 3, Chapter 2, Sanitary Code of 
the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

Item Type:   Consent       Action      X  Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes           No     (See attached) Not Applicable       X      . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to adopt Ordinance No. 193, An Ordinance Amending Title 3, Chapter 2, An Ordinance 
Relating to Reimbursement for Public Sewer Main Extensions and/or Sewer Capacity Upgrades 
of the Ordinance Code of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The minimum posting requirement of the revisions related to Ordinance 193 has been satisfied, 
and District staff recommends adoption by the Board after the public hearing scheduled for July 6, 
2023. The revisions would allow private developers to shoulder a proportionate share of the cost 
of sewer facility capacity upgrades through a Reimbursement Agreement, which is a common 
practice of other public agencies.  
 
District legal counsel prepared the proposed revisions (“Exhibit A”) to the Ordinance as presented 
to the Board on June 1, 2023. The revisions were based on District staff’s discussion with the 
Land Development Ad Hoc Committee on April 3, 2023 and research and review of applicable 
codes by District legal counsel. Attached is the final version of Ordinance 193 (“Exhibit B”) for 
review and approval by the Board. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 

1. Board adopted Ordinance No. 164 incorporating revisions to the various sections of the 
District’s Ordinance Code on May 28, 2015. 

2. On June 1, 2023, Board set a Public Hearing Date of July 6, 2023 for Ordinance No. 193, 
An Ordinance Amending Title 3, Chapter 2, An Ordinance Relating to Reimbursement for 
Public Sewer Main Extensions and/or Sewer Capacity Upgrades of the Ordinance Code of 
the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

Item Number__________4______ 

GM Review   _________CP_______ 

 

56

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


CHAPTER 2 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO REIMBURSEMENT FOR PUBLIC 

SEWER MAIN EXTENSIONS AND/OR SEWER CAPACITY UPGRADES 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE.  Where tThe extension of a public sewer and/or sewer capacity 

upgrades, to include but not limited to the increase in size and/or capacity of gravity 

sewers/sewer mains,  trunk lines or lateral extensions, the increase in size of sewer main lines or 

lateral extensions, pump stations, and/or force mains and/or gravity sewers,  to the existing sewer 

collection system that to  are necessary in order to serve any parcel or tract of land, the expense 

of such public sewer extension and/or sewer capacity upgrades shall be done by and borne by at 

the expense of the owner of said parcel or tract of land.  However, although, the District reserves 

the right to perform the work and bill the owner for the cost, to perform the work itself, or to 

perform the work pursuant to special assessment proceedings. Where the public sewer is more 

than four hundred (400) feet from the exterior wall of a proposed structure to the main sewer line 

Tthe District, in its sole discretion,  may enter into a Reimbursement Agreement with the 

applicant to reimburse the applicant when others connect to the new main sewer line.  The 

Reimbursement Agreement shall be valid for ten (10) years but may be extended at the discretion 

of the District.  Other applicants who connect to this main sewer line will contribute their 

proportionate share of the construction costs which shall be paid to the original applicant. The 

District Engineer in his sole discretion shall determine the relevant proportionality analysis to be 

used in a repayment calculation.  No interest calculation shall be part of the relevant 

proportionality analysis due any applicant. 

Exhibit A

57



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance 193   Page 1 of 2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

ORDINANCE NO. 193 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3, CHAPTER 2, 

OF THE ORDINANCE CODE OF THE 
LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO REIMBURSEMENT 
FOR PUBLIC SEWER MAIN EXTENSIONS AND/OR SEWER CAPACITY 

UPGRADES 

The Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, California, 
does ordain as follows: 

Section 1.  Title 3, Chapter 2, An Ordinance Relating to Reimbursement for Public Sewer Main 
Extensions, is amended to read as follows: 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE.  Where the extension of a public sewer and/or sewer capacity upgrades, 

to include but not limited to the increase in size and/or capacity of gravity sewers/sewer mains, 

trunk lines , pump stations, and/or force mains, to the existing sewer collection system that  are 

necessary in order to serve any parcel or tract of land, the expense of such public sewer extension 

and/or sewer capacity upgrades shall be done by and borne by  the owner of said parcel or tract 

of land.  However, the District reserves the right to perform the work and bill the owner for the 

cost, to perform the work itself, or to perform the work pursuant to special assessment 

proceedings. The District, in its sole discretion, may enter into a Reimbursement Agreement with 

the applicant to reimburse the applicant when others connect to the new main sewer line.  The 

Reimbursement Agreement shall be valid for ten (10) years but may be extended at the discretion 

of the District.  Other applicants who connect to this main sewer line will contribute their 

proportionate share of the construction costs which shall be paid to the original applicant. The 

District Engineer in his/her sole discretion shall determine the relevant proportionality analysis to 

be used in a repayment calculation.  No interest calculation shall be part of the relevant 

proportionality analysis. 

Section 2. Upon adoption of this Ordinance, it shall be entered in full in the minutes of the Board 

of Directors, shall be posted in one place in the District, shall be published once in the Marin 

Exhibit B

58



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance 193   Page 2 of 2 
 
 

Independent Journal, and shall take effect immediately upon the expiration of one (1) week of 

said publication and posting. 

 

********************** 
 

 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Ordinance duly 
and regularly passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District of Marin County, California, at a meeting hereof held on July 6, 2023, by the following 
vote of members thereof: 
 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 

__________________________________ 
Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary  
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________    
Megan Clark, Board President 
 
(seal) 
 

59



 

 
 

 

7/6/2023 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

FORD 
NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc 
Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 
McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  2023 Fleet Management 
Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 SF Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, CASA Energy Committee, 2023 Biosolids Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
2023 SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering 
Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  2023 McInnis Marsh Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 
2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Marin Special Districts Association, 
2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-Committee re: STPURWE, 
2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 6A 
                                                                                 DATE: July 6, 2023             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

87



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\07062023\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

7/6/2023 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 6B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108


	Agenda 07062023
	1 Public Comment
	2A Board Minutes 06152023
	2B Warrant List 07062023
	2C Ford Conference Request
	2D Asset Management Centricity
	2E Board Poicy F-50 Reserves Resolution 2023-2314
	2F Order of Publication
	3.1 General Manager Report
	4 Public Hearing Ordinance 193
	5 Board Member Reports
	5.3 Murray Reports
	6A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	6B Board Agenda Item Requests
	7 Various Industry Articles



